
 

 

Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Date:  Thursday, February 20, 2020 

Time:  1:00 p.m. 

Location: Lower Saucon Township  

Attendance: Hanover Engineering: Chris Taylor; Bethlehem Landfill: Astor Lawson & David Pannucci; 

Members: Neil Ortwein Staff Members: Leslie Huhn & Diane Palik; Council Liaison:   Priscilla 

deLeon (via speaker phone);  Absent:  Hazem Hijazi.    

 

Mr. Pannucci reviewed the monthly tonnages for January: 
 

        November  December  January                                                

MSW 26,863.19 28,432.27 26,238.22 

C&D 5,155.07 4,552.65 5,393.85 

Residual (Total) 2,237.89 1,844.97 1,599.23 

Asbestos 1.70 0.00 8.21 

Sewage Sludge (90/10) 75.56 96.18 98.13 

Out of State (Total) 20,823.54 (61%) 22,285.97 (64%) 22,471.95 (6%) 

Recycle 7 (86%) 8 (88%) 11 (81%) 

 

Mr. Pannucci said there were two Form U Submittals both on January 22, 2020, one from Buffalo Fuel Corp. and 

one from Recycle Logistics & Transport.  Annual groundwater trend analysis first quarter sampling event is 

scheduled February 24
th
 to the 26

th
.  Mr. Taylor said the part of the North Slope Road they drove is fine, but they 

will check out the rest of it.  Mr. Pannucci said yes they will check access points next week.   

 

Mr. Pannucci said there were no correspondences or reports.  They had no DEP inspections since the last meeting.  

Mr. Taylor said he shows there were no Air Quality inspections since September 2019 and no reporting since then.  

Mr. Pannucci said that’s probably accurate.  He said there were two Host Municipal Inspections by Mr. Taylor on 

February 6
th
 and 20

th
.   

 

Mr. Pannucci said regarding Commercial Waste Vehicles, there were 2,859 total trucks for January with 72 

overweight’s, 60 warnings and 12 suspensions.   Mr. Lawson said they are refreshing everyone’s memory on what 

the requirements are for traveling to and from the site like safety-wise routes, things like that.  They are sending a 

message out to all the haulers that they are serious about the rules they have in place.    

 

Mr. Pannucci said regarding flare operations and gas collection, the LFG flare is the main GCCS.  Bethlehem 

Landfill continues to communicate with SCS Field Services with any routine or non-routine maintenance to 

maximize LFG production and minimize odors.   The January average flare flow was 2,912 SCFM.  There were 

three shutdowns for January.  Mr. Taylor said the flare is running fine.  Under gas management, you are in contact 

with SCS to get you their upgrade plans for the gas collection systems, which are routinely done every year?  Mr. 

Pannucci said correct, they will start that process later in the year.  They are going around and looking at all their 

sites.   

 

Mr. Pannucci said the North Slope Road has not needed repairs nor has the swale needed repairs.  The abatement 

system continues to operate and discharge to the Bethlehem WWTP.  Intermittent malfunctions of the well pumps 

and controls are repaired or replaced as needed.  Control Systems 21 to replace transducer in AB-9.  Control 

Systems 21 performed electrical work in AB-2.  Mr. Taylor said prior to that, was it AB-10.  Mr. Pannucci said it 

was AB-10 and it was a flow meter.  Mr. Taylor asked you think you got that solved?  Mr. Pannucci said yes.  Mr. 

Taylor said you replaced the transducer in 9 so it was not calling for pumpage and 10 we had pumpage but we 

weren’t metering it.  Mr. Pannucci said it was fixed.     

 

Mr. Pannucci said leachate collection, flow rates continue to be monitored and reported.  Intermittent malfunctions 

of the well pumps and controls are repaired or replaced as needed.  Radiation monitoring there were 5 loads for 

January, all Tc-99m.  The waste streams met level 1 requirement and disposed on site.  The SE Realignment 

Construction Activities, waste operations are in SE-1B.   Mr. Taylor said construction activities, you are ramping 



Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

February 20, 2020 
 

     Page 2 of 2 

 

  

up to construct your next cell and you gave him a good explanation in the field, how you are going to go about that?  

The way it was planned out was Cell 2A South and Cell 2B to the North, you now talked to DEP and got their okay 

to build things a little differently and instead of building all of A and filling that and then building B, you are going 

to build half of each so you have continued uphill, downhill, north, south disposal area which is half of A & half of 

B, which you will call AB Phase 1.  Mr. Pannucci said correct.  Mr. Taylor said then you’ll move on to the eastern 

half of each of those.  When you start reporting on that, we’re not going to be talking about 2A and 2B, but 2AB 

Phase 1 and 2AB Phase 2 so everyone will understand that.  He said you are ramping up to that construction and 

already have equipment on site.  Mr. Pannucci said the liner has been ordered and shipped.  They are working on 

bringing in the wall materials coming on site currently and a lot of the stone for later on.  Mr. Taylor said we are 

looking at a lot more traffic.  Mr. Pannucci said a lot of the Bayshore trucks are being ramped down so it may not 

really affect the truck traffic too much.  There will be more employees, so there will be a little bit more traffic.   

 

Mr. Taylor asked for an update on any final capping that will take place this year.   Mr. Pannucci said he wouldn’t 

say they have any update, they are trying to set up a meeting with Roger Bellas and his team for the first week of 

March.  Mr. Taylor said he was out in December and that was the topic of discussion at that time.  Mr. Pannucci 

said it was.   

 

Mr. Taylor said there were 12 odor complaints from January to February 5, 2020, all from Steel City and 

descriptions are landfill gas.  Mr. Taylor said the odors are reported from DEP.  He hasn’t been made aware of 

anything in 2020.  Mr. Taylor said when does DEP give you this report.  Mr. Pannucci said they sent him the report 

this week for the meeting.  They usually do send it out periodically.  Mr. Taylor said odors can come from garbage, 

he didn’t get any offsite odors anywhere.  When he was on the top of the landfill with a NW wind off the north 

face, he caught something that wasn’t landfill gas, it was seep and they showed him a spot where they fixed the 

seep last week and you’ll have Cody and Phillip go over that area and track down any odors.  He asked if they 

wanted to say anything about the mister line.  Mr. Lawson said they are refurbishing the entire line that was there 

and replacing the misters.  The motor is out for repair right now and will be back in March.  They are going to 

double-check the line and make sure it’s intact including the nozzles.  Mr. Taylor said right now the top of the 

landfill is higher than any structures you can put a mister on.  Mr. Lawson said they have the fans up there right 

now.   Mr. Taylor said you are always putting up deer fences.  Mr. Lawson said correct.   

 

Mr. Taylor said that’s good news about the gas plan and you’re still looking at a blower for the motor to see if you 

can increase the vacuum in the well fields.  These are all things working towards better gas management.  IESI’s 

efforts in that regard are appreciated and we wish them luck.  It would be great if you could get a handle on odors.   

Keep up the good work and keep moving in that direction. 

 

Mr. Pannucci said you’ll see AB-1 had a pump issue, which has been corrected.  AB-3 they are looking into that 

one as they aren’t sure what’s going on there.  Mr. Taylor asked about AB-8.  Mr. Pannucci said everything is 

working properly and the numbers are showing there’s no water in the well.  Mr. Taylor said it could be a meter 

issue.  Mr. Pannucci said not from what the control systems have seen.  They checked everything to make sure it 

was working properly.  Mr. Taylor said he’s glad they are keeping after the abatement systems.   

 

Mr. Taylor said the street sweeper was going around today.  The truck wash was open although he didn’t see any 

trucks going in or out.  There was no activity at BRE.  There were five pickers out.  Windscreens were in place 

around the working face.  ERG and Copco was out to look at their blower and the PLC in your well and everything 

checked out.  You are still looking at grading around the flare.  There were no off-site issues.   

 

Mrs. Huhn asked about the quarterly report, which will be on the March 4
th
 agenda.  Mr. Taylor said the capping 

and final capping is the biggest thing they have to follow up on and there wasn’t much else on the quarterly report 

to talk about.   Mrs. deLeon asked if a representative from the landfill could attend that meeting.  Mr. Pannucci said 

they will have to check their calendar.  Mr. Taylor said the next meeting will be on Thursday, March 19, 2020 at 

1:00 p.m.   The meeting adjourned at 1:25 p.m. 


























